Public Document Pack

AUDIT COMMITTEE

21 MARCH 2016

PRESENT: Councillor K Hewson (Chairman); Councillors J Brandis (in place of B Chapple), Branston, M Collins, A Hetherington, M Smith, R Stuchbury, D Town and H Mordue (ex-Officio).

IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor C Adams.

APOLOGIES: Councillors B Chapple and P Irwin.

1. MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2016 be approved as a correct record.

EXTERNAL AUDIT - EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015-16 AND FEE LETTER

The Committee received a report and External Audit Plan which summarised the proposed approach and scope of work to be undertaken by the external auditors for 2016 in accordance with statutory requirements and to ensure it was aligned with the Committee's expectations.

The Audit Plan had been prepared having regard to several key inputs including:-

- Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements.
- Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards.
- The quality of systems and processes.
- Changes in the business and regulatory environment.
- Management's views on all the above mentioned issues.

The auditors had assessed the key risks which would drive the development of an effective audit and the planned audit strategy in response to those risks and had identified three significant risks to the opinion of the financial statements. These were the risk of fraud in revenue recognition, the risk of management override and the complexities in accounting for property, plant and equipment, the cyclical approach to valuations, and the material values involved.

There were also other financial statement risks that would be looked at, namely:-

- New General Ledger System the Council had changed its general ledger system from 1 June 2015.
- Group Accounts while the Council had been preparing group accounts for a few years in respect of Aylesbury Vale Estates LLP, three new companies (AVB Broadband, Novae Consulting and Vale Commerce Ltd) had been established in 2015.
- Pension Liability the pension liability was considered a significant estimate in relation to its size. In 2014/15, the liability stood at £90.3m.

 Provision for Business Rates Appeals – although the Council had developed an appropriate methodology for calculating a provision in 2013/14, it was intended to reassess the methodology to ensure that the assumptions remained appropriate.

The audit work would also focus on whether there were proper arrangements in place for securing financial resilience at the Council, and to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources by the Council. In particular, the auditors would be looking at the Council's finances and Medium Term Financial Plan for future years to ensure that appropriate means had been identified to account for the projected budget gap to 2018/19 of £5.6m.

An update on the results of the audit work in these areas would be reported back to the Committee in September 2016.

The indicative fee scale for the audit work was £56,785, although it was possible that this fee could increase in due course if additional testing or work was required in addition to that already identified within the Audit Plan. In addition, the estimated fee for the certification of the housing benefits subsidy claim and return was £11,286.

For the purposes of determining whether the financial statements were free from material error (i.e. the magnitude of an omission or mis-statement that, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the users of the financial statements), the external auditors had determined that overall materiality for the financial statements was £2.12 million based on 2% of gross expenditure. As such, any uncorrected audit mis-statements greater than £105,894 would be reported to the Audit Committee.

Members sought further information and were informed:-

- on the rationale for identifying the significant financial statement risks facing the Council, which had been identified through the auditor's knowledge of the Council's operations and discussion with those charged with governance and Officers.
- that it was usual practice for auditors to make checks when an organisation changed their general ledger system during the year.
- that the value added by the companies recently established by AVDC would be assessed as part of the value for money assessment. However, it was possible that it would be too early this year to properly assessment these impacts.
- that information on AVE was published in their own accounts, as well as financial information then also being consolidated within AVDC's accounts.
- that the overall materiality threshold for the financial statements of the Council remained at 2% of gross expenditure, and due to this had increased slightly from £2.04m last year to £2.12m for this Audit Plan.
- that, as mentioned in the minutes of the last meeting, the figure quoted in the EY Local Government Audit Committee briefing on 80% of Councils having a Local Plan in place had been sourced from a Downing Street Press Release.
- That, as mentioned in the minutes of the last meeting, the information reported in the EY Local Government Audit Committee briefing on extended right to buy periods did not have a huge impact on AVDC due to the small number of recent such RTB sales.

However, the initial agreement with VAHT regarding the share of RTB sales coming back to AVDC and being ringfenced for affordable housing provision would expire after 10 years. While AVDC would continue to receive RTB sales monies from VAHT, the Council would need to make a decision on how affordable housing would be provided for in future years.

RESOLVED -

That the contents of the external auditors' Audit Plan for 2016 be noted.

3. RISK MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE RISK ASSURANCE

The Committee received a report updating Members on Risk Management and the results of the Service Risk Assurance for 2015/16. The risk management arrangements were a key part of the overall internal control arrangements of the Council and formed part of the Annual Governance Statement.

The Council was currently undergoing significant organisational change. The introduction of the new CIPFA Governance Framework in April 2016 and the ongoing Commercial AVDC Programme had also necessitated a review of the risk management arrangements.

The starting point for this had been a review of the Council's risk management strategy in late summer 2015, and a revised risk management strategy had then been submitted to the Audit Committee in September 2015.

The Strategic Risk Register had last been reviewed in September 2015. A high level review in January 2016 identified that a number of the risks were no longer relevant, or had changed. Workshops were planned with sector leads to identify the strategic and corporate risks and sources of assurance over those risks. This information would be used to update the Risk Register. Procedures for ongoing risk management and reporting would then be established.

The Service Risk Assurance process had been undertaken with 20 Services/teams but due to a number of organisations it had not been possible to make a direct comparison with last year. However, as had been the case since a new service risk assurance checking system had been introduced in 2014, the process looked to address identified gaps in assurance for specialist areas such as Health and Safety, IT security, financial control and safeguarding.

The biggest risks identified by services were Information Security, Health and Safety and Business Continuity. The Committee discussed the graphs provided which showed a summary of the Risk Rating for all services/teams. Members requested further information and were informed:-

- (i) that a further report on risk management would be submitted to the July meeting, with information evidencing that the Council was ensuring that risk management was being embedded in processes being implemented to advance the Council's commercial ambitions.
- (ii) that the consolidated results information on page 52 of the Committee report regarding the biggest risks posed by Information Security and Health and Safety would help to set the programme of internal audit work put together.
- (iii) that safeguarding was taken very seriously by the Council across all service areas. However, there were some services areas that had greater exposure to

young people / adults who might be vulnerable, and these areas had identified safeguarding as a higher risk for their day-to-day work activities.

(iv) that AVDC did engage in some joint safeguarding work with other authorities and partners, including sitting on Bucks Safeguarding Boards.

RESOLVED -

That the results of the Service Risk Assurance for 2015/16 be noted.

4. AVDC COMPANY GOVERNANCE

As the approaches of the Commercial AVDC programme and particularly the formation and ownership of companies had the potential to become more common place, there was a need to ensure that good governance was in place so that the actions of AVDC and those companies were clear, transparent and in line with the overall aims of AVDC.

The Committee received the 'Guide to Creation and Working with Companies in which AVDC has a Financial Interest', that was included as an appendix to the Committee report and which set out how the relationships between any company that AVDC had a financial interest in and the council should be conducted. It also covered in broad terms the way in which new companies should be developed.

The governance of any company owned or invested in by AVDC was important as there was a need to :

- ensure that it was clear for the staff, public, Members and the company staff who was responsible for what, when and why.
- ensure that AVDC and the company was clear on its roles and responsibilities.
- ensure that nothing was developed that conflicted with AVDC, or placed AVDC in an unlawful positon.
- ensure that any and all legal or contractual issues were complied with.
- ensure that the company was operating ethically and transparency was in line with the councils legal responsibilities.

The aim of any company owned or part owned by AVDC was to produce overall benefits for the residents and businesses of the Vale. The overarching aim should be at the heart of all decision making, and the guide sought to assist in developing these approaches. It was recognised that companies created preceding the publication of the guide may not be fully compliant, or those who were not 100% owned by AVDC, however where possible these should be transitioned over the medium term to align with the guide where practical.

Members requested further information and were informed:-

- (i) that the companies were legal entities in their own right, so AVDC could not totally control their activities, as long as they were acting in accordance with their agreed Business Plans. They would also be bound by their Articles of Association that were quite constricted.
- (ii) an explanation was provided on how Freedom of Information legislation would impact on the companies. Companies would be expected to work with AVDC on responding to data requests.
- (iii) that quarterly monitoring reports on the companies would be made to shareholders.

Members considered the guide and while they did not suggest any changes to it they also commented:-

- that it was important that sufficient resource(s) were made available to deliver the companies' aims and ensure good governance.
- that it was important for the Directors and Officers of the companies to have the right skill(s) sets to enable them to fulfil their roles, and to report/monitor the activities of the companies. This could be supplemented by periodic scrutiny by Members.
- that it would be important for the companies to have Business Plans that were clear and transparent. In expressing a desire for lines of accountability to be clear, it was advocated that Members should scrutinise Business Plans before they were agreed.
- that the Council should be clearer in the guide that one of the main reasons for operating these companies was to raise revenue that would in turn close the identified funding gap.

RESOLVED -

That Cabinet be asked to consider the comments made by the Audit Committee in finalising the 'Guide to Creation and Working with Companies in which AVDC has a Financial Interest'.

5. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2015-16 (DRAFT)

The Committee received a report updating Members on the progress made in developing the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2015/16. A copy of the current draft AGS was included at Appendix 1 to the Committee report and was in a format similar to AGS presented to Members for the last few years. However, the introduction of the new CIPFA Good Governance Framework in April 2016 would require changes to the Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17.

The preparation and publication of the AGS was a statutory requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, with the Council required to review at least annually the effectiveness of its system of internal control and to prepare a statement on internal control in accordance with proper practices.

Part of the assurance gathering process used in putting together the draft AGS included a key assurance gathering process with Service Managers and Heads of Service, which had been introduced at the end of 2013/14 to replace the previous "Internal Control Assessment". Some minor improvements had been made to the process following a feedback session with some key staff.

This year, the assessment had been undertaken slightly earlier in January to avoid clashing with the office move at the end of January 2016. The results would be incorporated into the statement. An updated and more complete version of the AGS would then be reported to the Audit Committee's next meeting in July 2016.

Following some consideration of this early draft of the Annual Governance Statement, it was

RESOLVED -

That the current position regarding the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement 2015/16 be noted.

6. INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY AND PLAN FOR 2016-17

The Committee received a report with details of the Internal Audit Risk Assessment and Plan for 2016-17. The methodology applied in developing the Internal Audit Strategy and Plan had been updated for 2016-17. A full assessment of the "Audit Universe" had been performed with each auditable unit being risk assessed at a high level to determine the priority for internal audit, represented by the frequency of audit review.

As part of the Commercial AVDC Transformation Programme a number of "Business Reviews" were being undertaken across the Council. Where these have been defined, they had been identified in the risk assessment as Commercial AVDC reviews and projects could provide additional assurance. Internal Audit would review the scope of these projects and the outcomes and update the risk assessment accordingly.

Should further internal audit work be required as a result of emerging risks highlighted during the Commercial AVDC Business Reviews, the annual plan would be updated to accommodate this work.

The work plan had been discussed with Directors and Sector Leads to obtain their views and took into account any areas they had specifically identified as areas to review. The core financial systems areas and housing benefits and collection fund remained on the list each year but the scope of the reviews would be tailored to look at different areas of risk each year as well as the core key controls.

The Internal Audit Plan would be reviewed on a quarterly basis to allow for flexibility to pick up new areas of risk or organisational change. This would be reported to the committee as part of the progress report.

Members sought further information and were informed:-

- (i) that all Council areas would be considered for audit at least every 3 years, or at the frequency intervals detailed in the Plans' Risk Assessment.
- (ii) that the majority of the plan would be delivered by the in-house Internal Audit Officer. Business Assurance Services currently had budget for 2 FTE vacant positions and where necessary, some of that money would be used to buy in specialist input to individual audit reviews.
- (iii) that this was the first year that the Internal Audit Plan had been assessed against auditable units. This would be re-assessed each year and it was possible that the frequency with which some services were then subject to audit would change.

RESOLVED -

That the Internal Audit Strategy and Plan for 2016-17 (Appendix 1 to the Committee report) be approved.

7. BUSINESS ASSURANCE SERVICES - PROGRESS REPORT

The Committee received a progress report against the 2015/16 Business Assurance Plan. The report also contained confidential information on the financial systems and controls review and Members referred to these as part of their deliberations.

The following Business Assurance work and matters were highlighted:-

(i) Assurance reviews completed since the last progress report:

Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable – the review had been given a Limited Assurance rating, details of which were attached at Appendix 3 to the Committee report.

Payroll – the review had been given a Reasonable Assurance rating and had raised two medium priority recommendations regarding the need to perform a monthly reconciliation between the payroll costs in iTrent and the general ledger, and to formally adopt a Corporate 'Pay Rate Structure' for casual workers and to review this annually.

(ii) Assurance Plan Work in Progress – the following work from the 2015/2016 plan had started:-

Council Tax and Business Rates collections – the audit work was complete and a draft report was being prepared.

General Ledger and Budgetary Control – the review had been scoped and the terms of reference issued. The fieldwork and a draft report would be completed by the end of March 2016.

Housing Benefits – the review had been scoped and the terms of reference issued. The fieldwork and a draft report would be completed by the end of March 2016.

Data Protection (Home working and use of personal devices) – work on this assurance review would commence on 14 March 2016

- (iii) Revised Assurance Plan 2015/16 a revised plan had been approved by Members in January 2016. The plan had been further reviewed and updated for the remainder of the year and these changes were reflected at Appendix 2, which also detailed work completed, outstanding and the changes.
- (iv) Overdue Audit Recommendations and follow up work

Section 106 (Developer Contributions) – this review had incorporated a 'health check' against the new regulations that impact on Section Agreements. The review had been completed and had highlighted the need for the Council to reflect the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations in the way Section 106 agreements were drafted.

Taxi Licensing – an assurance review had been undertaken to check the controls around vetting and issuing licences to drive private hire and hackney carriages. There had been one recommendation which the Department was currently actioning regarding a procedure for data retention that covered not just taxi

licensing but all other documents that may contain personal, sensitive information within the Environmental Health and Licensing Department.

The Chairman informed Members that he had met with the Business Assurance Services Manager (interim) and the Director with responsibility for finance to discuss the confidential information on the financial systems and controls review, and the actions being taken to update and improve some key monitoring controls. He was satisfied that actions to improve the controls were being taken, and had asked that a further report be made on the matter to the Audit Committee in due course.

RESOLVED -

- (1) That the progress report be noted, including the progress made by Business Assurance Services against work identified in the Assurance Plan for 2015/16.
- (2) That the 'Update on Financial Systems and Controls' be noted.

8. AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee considered the future Work Programme for 2016 which took account of comments and requests made at Audit previous Committee meetings and the requirements of the internal and external audit processes. It was noted that a report on the Audit Committee Review of Effectiveness would be submitted to the next meeting on 25 July 2016.

RESOLVED -

That the future Work Programme as discussed at the meeting be approved.

9. DATE OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The next meeting of the Audit Committee would be held at 6.30 pm on 25 July 2016, in the Olympic Room at The Gateway, Gatehouse Road, Aylesbury.